
RFP-25-01 Branding Services  

Questions and Answers – Round 2 

Q: Greetings. I'm writing in regard to Yakima Valley Libraries' RFP for branding services. The RFP 

doesn't appear to specify whether proposals can contain links to work samples and other content 

relevant to the approach and portfolio. Will the evaluators follow links or must all elements of the 

response be contained in the proposal document itself? 

 

A: For this RFP, proposers may include links to work samples or related materials as part of their 

proposal. Links may be reviewed to better understand a firm’s experience and portfolio; however, 

proposals should be complete and clearly responsive within the submitted proposal document itself. 

Proposers should not rely solely on linked content to address required elements of the RFP. 

 

Q: Thank you for the opportunity to review RFP-25-01 and submit questions. Here are our 

questions. 

• Is there a target budget range or anticipated budget allocation for this project that proposers 
should be aware of? 

• For the optional website redesign, should this be priced separately as an added-value service, 
or is YVL considering it as a potential extension of the core branding scope? 

• Regarding signage, is YVL primarily seeking design concepts and standards, or should 
proposals also account for production coordination and vendor management? 

• Beyond English and Spanish, are there additional accessibility or translation considerations 
YVL would like reflected in the brand standards? 

 

A: Thank you for your thoughtful questions and for your interest in RFP-25-01. Please see 

responses below. 

• Target budget range 

Yakima Valley Libraries has not established a fixed budget range for this project. Proposers 

are encouraged to submit cost proposals that align with their recommended approach, 

scope, and level of service as described in their response. 

• Optional website redesign 

The optional website redesign should be priced separately. YVL is considering this as a 

potential extension to the core branding scope and is seeking clarity on approach, cost, and 

value should this option be pursued. 

• Signage scope 

YVL is primarily seeking signage design concepts, standards, and guidelines that can be 

applied consistently across locations. Proposals may describe experience with production 

coordination or vendor management; however, costs related to fabrication or installation 

should be clearly identified and separated, if included. 

 



• Accessibility and translation considerations 

Beyond English and Spanish, YVL is interested in brand standards that reflect accessibility 

best practices, including considerations for readability, contrast, and inclusive design. 

Proposers may note experience with additional languages or accessibility frameworks, but no 

additional translation requirements beyond English and Spanish are currently mandated. 

Q 1: Project Coordination & Review Process 

• Will Yakima Valley Libraries designate a primary point of contact or project lead responsible 

for coordinating reviews within the YVL team—specifically to facilitate proofing cycles, 

consolidate internal feedback, and communicate direction to the selected agency? 

Q 2: Signage Scope & System Clarification 

• Can YVL provide additional detail regarding the anticipated scope of signage across 

branches? Specifically:  

o Is there an estimated number of collection or wayfinding signs anticipated per 

location? 

o Has YVL identified a standardized set of signage types for which specifications will 

be provided, or should the agency anticipate proposing a signage system with 

recommended variations by branch? 

o Any clarification regarding interior signage systems, digital versus static applications, 

and potential differences across facilities would be greatly appreciated. 

 

A 1: Project Coordination & Review Process 

Yakima Valley Libraries will designate a single primary point of contact for the project. This 

individual will serve as the project lead and will be responsible for coordinating internal reviews, 

consolidating feedback from YVL stakeholders, and communicating direction and approvals to the 

selected agency. 

A 2: Signage Scope & System Clarification 

At this time, YVL has not finalized a comprehensive signage inventory or uniform count across 

branches. Facilities vary in size, layout, and usage, and signage needs differ accordingly. 

YVL is primarily seeking a scalable and adaptable signage system that establishes clear standards, 

design principles, and recommended applications that can be applied consistently across locations 

while allowing for branch-level variation. Proposals should focus on the development of signage 

guidelines, typologies, and use cases rather than fixed quantities per location. 

Proposers may address both static and digital signage considerations at a conceptual and standards 

level. Differences across facilities may be noted where relevant; however, detailed production 



counts, fabrication, or installation planning are not required unless clearly identified as optional or 

supplemental. 

Q: Thank you for these answers. Will you be sharing all of the questions and answers submitted for 

this RFP? 

A: Yes. Questions and responses related to RFP-25-01 are posted on Yakima Valley Libraries’ 

website as they are answered to ensure equal access to information for all prospective proposers. We 

encourage all interested firms to review the Finance and Purchasing page regularly for updates. 

Q: Has a budget been established for this procurement? Even a ballpark estimate would be helpful 

in our planning stages. 

A: Thank you for your question. Yakima Valley Libraries has not established a fixed or target budget 

for this procurement. Proposers are encouraged to submit cost proposals that reflect their 

recommended scope, approach, and level of service as outlined in their response to the RFP. 

Q: As we formulate and structure our recommended approach, solutions, and cost, we have a few 

clarifying questions that would help ensure our proposal aligns with your priorities and expectations: 

• Is there an estimated budget range for the project’s “must-have” scope? 

• Is engaging the community or community partners considered valuable for this project (e.g., 

surveys, focus groups, town hall listening sessions, or other forms of public engagement)? 

 
A: Thank you for your interest in the Yakima Valley Libraries rebranding project and for your 
thoughtful questions. Please see responses below. 

• Estimated budget range 

Yakima Valley Libraries has not established a fixed or target budget range for the “must-

have” scope of this project. Proposers are encouraged to submit cost proposals that reflect 

their recommended approach, scope, and level of service as outlined in their response to the 

RFP. 

• Community engagement considerations 

Community engagement may be considered a value-add to this project. Proposers may 

describe approaches to engagement, including collaboration with community members or 

partners, where they believe it would strengthen the branding outcome. Any such activities 

should be clearly described and appropriately scoped within the proposal. 

Q: To help us think about project phases, can you share how you’re imagining a potential website 

design fitting in?  

Is that something you’d want to move alongside the brand work, or does it feel like a later-phase 

project? 

How have your services, audiences and community impact evolved over the past 3 years? 



Since your organization has grown, what parts of the current brand no longer feel aligned with who 

you are today? 

Have you already conducted any research or listening work with your staff, leaderships, patrons, 

partners, or board members as part of exploring a rebrand? 

A: Website Design & Project Phasing 

Yakima Valley Libraries views a potential website redesign as related but optional to the core 

branding work. While brand development would inform any future website efforts, YVL has not 

determined whether a website redesign would occur concurrently with the branding work or as a 

later phase. Proposers may recommend sequencing or phasing based on their experience, provided 

the website component is clearly identified and scoped separately. 

Evolution of Services, Audiences, and Community Impact 

Over the past three years, Yakima Valley Libraries has expanded services and system-wide 

programming, strengthened community partnerships, and increased engagement across a broader 

range of ages and communities. There has been a growing emphasis on early literacy, lifelong 

learning, outreach, and equitable access to resources, alongside increased visibility and impact across 

the region. 

Brand Alignment Considerations 

As the organization has grown, elements of the current brand no longer fully reflect YVL’s scale, 

consistency, and community presence. In particular, there is a need for a more cohesive and flexible 

brand system that can be applied consistently across branches and platforms, while better 

representing YVL’s role as a connected, regional library system. 

Prior Research or Listening Work 

YVL has gathered ongoing feedback through staff collaboration, program evaluation, patron 

interaction, and community partnerships. While no single, comprehensive rebranding study has been 

conducted, insights from these efforts may inform the branding process. Proposers are encouraged 

to recommend discovery or research approaches they believe would strengthen the work. 

Thank you again for your interest in Yakima Valley Libraries and for your thoughtful engagement 

with the RFP process. 

Q: Thank you so much for sharing this information and including us on your email. This project 

sounds super interesting! 

I was wondering if you could please share a range of budget for this work. Is the team considering 

this work to be from $50,000 to $75,000 or $75,000 to $100,000 or more than $100,000 or less than 

$50,000?  

 



This would be super helpful to identify for possible approach or strategy, in case that we see 

opportunity to bring co-creation to this process and involve more interested parties to this decision 

or if because of budget we can only think of main stakeholders (guidance on range would allow us to 

see if we can include that as an option or not). 

A: Thank you for your message and for your interest in the project. We’re glad to hear the work 

resonates with you. 

At this time, Yakima Valley Libraries has not established a specific budget range for this 

procurement. Rather than anchoring proposals to a predetermined dollar range, we are seeking 

responses that outline a recommended approach, scope, and level of service, along with associated 

costs, that proposers believe will best meet the goals of the project. 

Proposers should use their professional judgment to recommend a scope and level of engagement 

that is appropriate for a regional public library system of Yakima Valley Libraries’ size and 

complexity. 

Proposers are welcome to describe optional or value-add elements—such as co-creation or broader 

engagement approaches—so long as they are clearly scoped and costed. This allows YVL to better 

understand the range of potential approaches and make an informed evaluation based on overall 

value. 

Thank you again for your thoughtful questions and your interest in Yakima Valley Libraries. We 

look forward to reviewing proposals. 

Q: I hope this email finds you well. I came across your branding RFP online for Yakima Valley 

Libraries, and we feel our services are a good fit for your needs. Before preparing a proposal, I 

wanted to ask - are you open to receiving bids from firms who are located out of the state of 

Washington? 

A: Thank you for reaching out and for your interest in Yakima Valley Libraries’ branding RFP. Yes, 

we are open to receiving bids from firms located outside of Washington State. 

We look forward to reviewing your proposal should you choose to submit one. 

Q: We were excited to come across your RFP for rebranding YVL. We are a group of senior 

practitioners with deep experience in developing brands across a broad range of sectors, including 

non-profits and brands where physical environments are core to the brand experience. Foundational 

brand work is the heart of what we do, and your scope is squarely in our wheelhouse. 

Most of our questions were already answered; we just have a few others: 

• Will you consider agencies that aren’t located in Washington state? 

• Who will comprise the core team for the project? 

• Who will be the ultimate decision-makers? 



• Is it critical to get input from patrons and the community? We can include research and 

interviews with community members, it will just add some time and budget. 

A: Out-of-state agencies 

Yes. Yakima Valley Libraries will consider proposals from qualified firms regardless of location, 

provided all requirements of the RFP are met. 

Core project team 

YVL will designate a primary point of contact to serve as the project lead and coordinate the work 

internally. Additional staff and stakeholders may be involved at various points in the process as 

appropriate to the scope of work. 

Decision-making 

Final decisions will be made by Yakima Valley Libraries in accordance with the evaluation process 

outlined in the RFP. 

Patron and community input 

Community input is not a required component of the project, but may be considered a value-add. 

Proposers may include research, interviews, or engagement approaches where they believe such 

input would strengthen the outcome. Any proposed engagement should be clearly described and 

appropriately scoped, including impacts on timeline and budget. 

Q: Happy Monday! The team is curious what YVL’s budget for the Branding Services project is? 

A: Yakima Valley Libraries has not established a fixed or target budget for the Branding Services 

project. We are seeking proposals that outline a recommended approach, scope, and level of service, 

along with associated costs, that proposers believe will best meet the goals of the project. 

Thank you again for your interest in Yakima Valley Libraries. 

 


